Present: Councillor Claire Kober (Chair), Councillor John Bevan, Councillor Nilgun Canver, Councillor Joe Goldberg, Councillor Alan Strickland, Councillor Bernice Vanier, Councillor Ann Waters, Councillor Richard Watson.

MINUTE NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

ACTION BY

CAB294.	APOLOGIES			
	There were no apologies for absence.			
CAB295.	URGENT BUSINESS			
	There were no items of Urgent Business.			
CAB296.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST			
	There were no declarations for interest made.			
CAB297.	MINUTES			
	RESOLVED:			
	That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 November 2012 be			
	confirmed as a correct record.			
CAB298.	CAB298. RESPONSE TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - INTERIM REPORT ON WASTE AND RECYCLING Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for the Environment, which set out the response to the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel's interim report on the new waste and recycling service.			
	RESOLVED:			
	That the response to the Environment and Housing Scrutiny Panel's interim report on the new waste and recycling service, as set out in Appendix B of the report, be agreed.			
	Alternative Options Considered Not applicable.			
	Reasons for Decision The Panel heard evidence from a wide range of stakeholders and visited a number of sites across the Borough to gather evidence on issues that had arisen following the introduction of the new service. The report provides a response to the recommendations made by the Panel.			

CAB299.	DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS		
	A deputation was accepted in opposition to Item 15: 'Review of Right to Buy Lease' from Ms Lynn Zilkha, representing the Haringey Leaseholders Campaign Group (HLCG).		
CAB300.	BUDGET MONITORING		
	Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction, which forecast financial revenue and capital outturns for 2012/13 based on actual performance up to the end of October 2012 (Period 7). The report also set out proposed management actions and sought approval of proposed budget adjustments (virements).		
	RESOLVED:		
	 That the projected outturn position against the Council's 2012/13 revenue and capital budgets be noted. 		
	ii. That the budget changes (virements) set out in Appendix 3 of the report be approved.		
	Alternative Options Considered The quarterly reports to Cabinet on the Council's overall financial position are an important element of the overall Medium Term Financial Planning process. A risk based approach to budget monitoring has been developed in order to manage the Council's finances in a time of economic and financial uncertainty.		
	Cabinet could choose to adopt a less rigorous regime and examine the financial position at a later stage. Projections could be marginally more accurate if a delayed approach was adopted, but there would be less time for robust development and consideration of management actions and virements.		
	Reasons for Decision Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by Cabinet. These are shown in the appendices to the report.		
CAB301.	I. FINANCIAL PLANNING 2013/14 TO 2015/16		
	Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction, which set out the strategic financial issues for the three year planning period to 2015/16. The report also proposed the process for setting the Council's 2013/14 Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) to 2015/16.		
	The Cabinet Member noted that the Council was yet to be notified of the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement and that until this was known there would be uncertainty with regard to the budget position for 2013/14. This, combined with changes to the payment of Council Tax		

Benefit, meant that there may be further re-prioritisation of resources during the budget setting process in the new year.

In response to concerns expressed regarding increased charges to schools for school swimming lessons and the impact of the deletion of the mobile library service the Leader requested that the relevant Cabinet Members took into consideration the points made during the budget setting process.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the current known changes to Local Government Finance, set out in Section 7 of the report and the associated modelling assumptions, be noted.
- ii. That it be noted that the assumptions would be refined after the provisional Local Government Finance Settlement was published in late December 2012.
- iii. That the proposed housing rent increases, as set out in Appendix 5 of the report, which were subject to consultation, be noted.
- iv. That the proposed tenants service charges, set out in Appendix 5 of the report, which were subject to consultation, be noted.
- v. That the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2013 2016, as described in Appendix 5 of the report, be noted.
- vi. That the draft proposals, to be recommended to the Full Council at its meeting in February 2013 for the Council's Capital Programme for the period 2013/14 2015/16, as set out in paragraph 12 and Appendix 6 of the report, be approved.
- vii. That the draft proposals, to be recommended to the Full Council at its meeting in February 2013, for the Council's MTFP 2013/14 2015/16, subject to the announcement of the provisional Local Government financial settlement (Appendices 1-4), be approved.
- viii. That the significant reform of school funding being implemented in 2013/14 (as detailed in paragraph 10.1 of the report) be noted.
- ix. That the projected level of Dedicated Schools Grant as £226.244m (detailed in paragraph 10.12 of the report) be agreed.
- x. That it be noted that an expected pupil premium allocation of £12.793m for 2013/14 (as detailed in paragraph 10.6 of the report) be noted.
- xi. That projected income from the Education Funding Agency (EFA) to fund post 16 education in Haringey schools in 2013/14 (as set out in paragraph 10.7 of the report) be noted.

That the proposed allocation of the Schools Block recommended Xİİ. to the Schools Forum on 6 December 2012, including the elements set out below, be noted: Growth Fund £1.5m Centrally retained budgets £3.602m Delegation to schools through the R-16 formula £199.550m Alternative Options Considered The report proposes that the Cabinet should consider draft proposals to deliver a balanced and sustainable MTFP at its meeting in February 2013. This is in line with the process adopted in 2012. This approach was developed in order to respond to a series of central Government funding cuts that were unprecedented in scale. Additionally, the Council has to plan for a large scale change in the way Local Government is financed, with very late delivery of the provisional details. Cabinet could choose to adopt a less demanding pace and examine options at a later stage. There would be more certainty over the exact level of funding if a delayed approach was adopted, but there would be less time for robust development and consideration of options, leading to delays in implementation and delivery. **Reasons for Decision** A decision is required to confirm draft savings and investment proposals designed to balance the 2013/14 budget and the Medium Term Financial Plan. Approval of this decision by Cabinet will allow delivery plans to be developed in advance of the Local Government Finance Settlement, allowing a balanced budgetary position to be presented to Cabinet in February in order that it can be recommended to Council. CAB302. FEES AND CHARGES 2013/14 Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction, which sought approval of proposed increases in fees and charges for 2013/14 as set out in the appendices to the report. An additional Appendix (10) was circulated to Members on 13 December 2012, detailing the fee for the Meals on Wheels Service. Whilst the fee was referred to in the main body of the report (paragraph 7.4.1) it was considered appropriate to set out the fee clearly in an Appendix, as had been done in respect of all other fees considered by the Cabinet. This was to enable the Cabinet to agree the Fees and Charges as set out within the appendices to the report. **RESOLVED:** That it be agreed that a general increase of 3% was applied to i. Fees and Charges levied by the Council with effect from 1 April

RESOLVED:

That the proposed funding formula, set out in Appendix 1 of the report and unanimously recommended by the Haringey Schools Forum, be agreed, and that the Director of Children's Services be given delegated authority to approve amendments to the formula if the Director considered that such amendments were necessary to address in order any equalities issues arising from the application of the revised DfE datasets (as set out in paragraph 1.5 of the report) and associated EqIA analysis.

Alternative Options Considered

Several models were considered by the Schools Forum Working Party and prior to that the Schools Forum on 11 October 2012.

The working group initially considered sixteen models that offered permutations against the allowable formula factors e.g. variations against lump sums of £100k and £150k or no lump sum. This also included looking at deprivation factors (FSME and IDACI) both individually and in combination. Based on the guidance given by the working party and the Schools Forum meeting in July, further work was undertaken to map the existing formula factors against the new, more limited, allowable factors.

Following this modelling to limit turbulence within the constraints of ensuring schools serving the most deprived areas were protected and the convergence of the primary: secondary ratio was carried out prior to reporting the recommendation model to Forum in October 2012.

Reasons for Decision

It is the statutory responsibility of the Council to approve the funding formula for schools.

CAB305. PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT QUARTER TWO 2012/13

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Leader of the Council, which outlined performance against the Council's priorities and other major responsibilities during the first half of 2012/13.

RESOLVED:

That progress against the Council's priorities and other major responsibilities in during the first half of 2012/13 be noted.

Alternative Options Considered

Alternative options are not applicable for this report.

Reasons for Decision

This report is for information only. Cabinet is asked to note progress against the Council Plan.

CAB306. ONE BOROUGH ONE FUTURE

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Leader of the Council, which sought agreement to the award of funding to five projects from the One Borough, One Future Fund.

The Leader noted that over three hundred applications had been received for funding, which had been considered by a cross party panel of Members and thanked the Members and officers that had been involved for their contribution.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the awarding of funding, as set out below, to the following five projects, from the One Borough One Future Fund, with the Funding would be awarded to all projects in phases, with progress and performance against agreed targets to be reviewed at the end of each phase before further funding was released:

- a. Family Action for a sum of up to £299,455
- b. **Quaker Social Action** for a sum of up to £285,540
- c. Carbon Management, London Borough of Haringey for a sum of up to £45,000
- d. Women Like Us and Community Development Foundation for a sum of up to £20,000 for a feasibility study (originally funding request of £350,279)
- e. **Worklife** for a sum of up to £18,750 for a feasibility study (originally funding request of £288,750)

Alternative Options Considered

The One Borough One Future Fund was set up to challenge current service provision, and to create a space to innovate by funding pilot projects. The initiative in itself has been a new and bold approach for the Council, deemed necessary to ensure that services align with the changing needs of residents in the Borough.

All other applications at both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the selection process have been considered and assessed, based on the criteria set out in Section 5. The recommended final projects have been selected from those applicants, on account of these merits.

Reasons for Decision

A £1.2m budget for the One Borough One Future Fund was approved at Full Council's budget setting meeting on 24 February 2012 and increased to £1.5m by approval of Cabinet on 12 June 2012. The decision is now being taken to award an initial level of funding to projects recommended by the Innovation Panel of cross-party Members, following a two-phase application process. This decision will enable projects to commence their first stage of implementation or development in January 2013.

PROPERTIES

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Housing, which sought authorisation to make a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) for twelve properties.

The Cabinet Member noted that this was a highly effective method of bringing properties back into use. Where similar action had been approved by Cabinet previously a significant proportion of the owners had taken action to bring properties back into use.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the submission of the twelve properties listed in paragraph 5.8 of the report to the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government for a confirmed Order, under Compulsory Purchase powers, be authorised.
- ii. That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to:
 - a. Make and seal the Orders for submission to the Secretary of State for consideration and approval (including the service of any requisition notices necessary to establish interests in the property) and to carry out the statutory notification required.
 - b. Confirm the Compulsory Purchase Order in the event of the Secretary of State returning the Order authorising the Council to do so.
 - c. Prepare for, and represent the Council at, any public inquiry held following submission of the Order to the Secretary of State.
 - d. Upon confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase Order proceed with acquisition of the property.
 - e. In the event that any of the owner(s) undertake(s) in the form of a legally enforceable cross undertaking to bring the relevant property back into residential occupation and use within a reasonable timescale, to authorise the Head of Legal Services, in consultation with the Director of Adult and Housing Services, to enter into and enforce such an undertaking instead of proceeding with the CPO for the property in question.
 - f. Act in relation to any other procedural matters that may arise in the normal course of the CPO process.
- iii. That (subject to the confirmation of the CPO by the Secretary of State) approval be given to the disposal of the property to a Registered Provider where possible, or to an individual or private developer, with covenants to bring the property back into use as

soon as possible. iv. That the costs of the CPO to be met from the Capital Programme be authorised. That the recycling of the receipt from the disposal back to the ۷. capital programme budget for the continued private sector housing CPO programme be authorised. **Alternative Options Considered** All options have been tried and exhausted. Letters have been sent to the owners of the empty properties offering advice and grant aid. Some of these properties have a debt outstanding to the Council which is being pursued under the Enforced Sales process. If the owner fails to pay, an Enforced Sale will be pursued and the property will be sold at auction. If they do pay but do not renovate the home and bring it back into use, the Council will proceed with a CPO. **Reasons for Decision** The properties contained in this report are owned by people who have failed to take action to bring them back into use despite letters and encouragement from the Council over a long period of time. These owners have been offered grant aid to help them financially and have not taken this offer up. The decision to CPO these properties will very likely result in several of these owners taking the appropriate action to repair and occupy the properties. This will not be achieved without this Cabinet decision and the powers which then follow. It is inevitable that a number of properties will be subject to full CPO action where possession is gained and the properties sold on to new owners who have demonstrated to have the financial means to restore and occupy. CAB308. REVIEW OF RIGHT TO BUY LEASE Cabinet considered a report that sought approval to make changes to the standard Right to Buy lease in order to support housing management policies and to simplify the calculation of management fees. Prior to consideration of the report a deputation in opposition to the proposals was received from Ms Lynne Zilkha on behalf of the Haringey Leaseholders Campaign Group (HLCG) Committee. Ms Zilkha noted that as leaseholders she and members of HLCG Committee had concerns regarding the Council's future management of leasehold properties. She contended that the Council had existing powers to enforce the conditions of leases and that further clauses and regulations were not required.

Ms Zilkha questioned whether the Council was legally able to make new clauses and regulations to the existing lease and noted that schedule 5 of the current lease 'Regulations and Restrictions' already listed restrictions placed on leaseholders. She went on to refer to legal

challenges brought against other Local Authorities in London by leaseholders and argued that the outcome of these demonstrated that the proposed clauses and regulations were not lawful and requested that the advice from Counsel, received by the Council, was shared with leaseholders.

In conclusion Ms Zilkha contended that the proposed clauses and regulations were unnecessary and that they would place an unacceptable financial burden on leaseholders.

The Cabinet Member for Housing responded to Ms Zilkha's deputation. It was noted that the new regulations related to works that would improve the safety and security of buildings. Measures such as the introduction of a sinking fund, which would be used to meet the cost of future major works, would prevent leaseholders being presented with large bills. With regard to concerns expressed around the legality of the proposals the Cabinet Member noted that advice had been obtained from Counsel in the drafting of the report.

The Head of Legal Services advised that no changes were being made to the existing clauses within the lease. As the report set out the Council was permitted to make additional clauses to the lease as proposed.

It was noted that legal advice requested and received was provided to the client, in this instance the Council, on a confidential basis and that it was not usual to share this with a third party.

RESOLVED:

- i. That the following proposals detailed in sections 5.2, 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5 of the report be approved, subject to the final wording of the clauses and regulations set out in (ii) and (iii) below being agreed by the Director of Adult and Housing services in consultation with the Head of Legal Services and the Cabinet Member Housing:
- ii. New clauses in the standard Right to Buy Lease for all new leaseholders regarding:
 - a. Arrears to charge all leaseholders the costs of late payments
 - b. Subletting to enable the landlord to more easily recover the administrative costs attached to this
 - c. Management fee to simplify the calculation
 - d. Reserve of sinking fund for the costs of future major works for all leaseholders
- iii. New regulations for all leaseholders concerning:
 - a. Gas safety
 - b. Internal wiring
 - c. Overcrowding
 - d. Ban on security grills over windows and doors and stricter

	enforcement of standards relating to the outer doors of leaseholders' properties e. Disposal of waste through the sewage and waste water pipes
	Alternative Options Considered The consideration of other options was not relevant in this context.
	Reasons for Decision The Government's increase of the Right to Buy discount is likely to lead to an increase in the sale of Council flats. In addition there is an increasing trend for leaseholders to sublet their properties. These factors require additional regulations to enable the Council as the landlord to make leaseholders more aware of their responsibilities both before and after they purchase their properties.
CAB309.	DESIGNATION OF HIGHGATE NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM AND
	NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Social Inclusion, which outlined the content of applications submitted to Camden and Haringey Councils for the designation of a Highgate Neighbourhood Forum and Neighbourhood Area. The report also summarised responses received to the consultation undertaken with regard to the applications.
	In response to concerns expressed by residents from Stanhope Gardens, Claremont Road and Maybury Mews, noting their preference to be included within a Crouch End Neighbourhood Area (if one were to be established in the future) Cabinet was advised that the Council could only refuse an application for a Neighbourhood Area on planning grounds. Although streets could not be included in more than one Neighbourhood Area, if an application were to be made for a Crouch End Neighbourhood Area in the future consideration could be given to reviewing these streets as part of the application process.
	RESOLVED:
	i. That the responses to the consultation on the applications for the Highgate Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum, as set out in Appendix A be noted and approved (subject to similar determinations by the London Borough of Camden in respect of that part of the Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum within Camden).
	ii. That it be agreed, pursuant to Section 61G and 61I of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to designate the Highgate Neighbourhood Area, as set out in Appendices B and C of the report.
	iii. That it be agreed, pursuant to Section 61F of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, to designate the Highgate Neighbourhood Forum, as set out in Appendices D and E of the report.
	Alternative Options Considered There are no alternative options. This legislation is now in force and local authorities are required to facilitate the process.
	Reasons for Decision

	In line with the Localism Act 2011 and the supporting Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012, Local Authorities are required to facilitate the Neighbourhood planning process.		
CAB310.	DRAFT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT POLICIES DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR CONSULTATION Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Social Inclusion, which set out the proposed approach to the development of Haringey's Development Management Policies (DMP) and that also sought approval to commence the process of public consultation on a DMP Engagement Document in 2013. RESOLVED:		
	 That the proposed scope of the Development Management Policies Engagement Document, set out in Appendix 1 of the report, be noted. 		
	 That authority be delegated to the Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Social Inclusion and the Director of Place and Sustainability to approve the final consultation document and associated Sustainability Appraisal and Equalities Impact Assessment. 		
	Alternative Options Considered Consideration was given to not adopting Development Management Policies and instead relying on the Local Plan: Strategic Policies and London Plan for determining applications. However, detailed planning policies are necessary to determine individual planning applications. The DMP addresses issues and concerns local to Haringey so relying on the London Plan for determining applications is not an option.		
	Reasons for Decision The Development Management Policies form part of the Council's folder of Local Plan documents and the production of each stage is subject to statutory public consultation. The decision to consult needs to be approved by Cabinet.		
CAB311.	 DECENT HOMES PROGRAMME 2013/14 AND 2014/15 (YEARS 6 AND 7) Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Housing, which provided Members with details of the investment priorities that were proposed for the 2013/14 Decent Homes Programme, together with details of a number of other investment priorities that were recommended for inclusion in the programme when funding became available. 		
	RESOLVED:		
	 That the proposed investment priorities for 2013/14 (Year 6 of the Decent Homes Programme) as detailed in Appendix 1 of the report be noted and agreed. 		

ii.	That the £10m 'reserve list' of homes, detailed in Appendix 2 of
	the report, be noted and that it be agreed that these homes
	should be added to the Decent Homes Programme when funds
	allow.

- iii. That it be agreed that authority to approve the Agreed Maximum Prices for the 2013/14 Decent Homes Programme be delegated to the Director of Adult and Housing Services after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing.
- iv. That it be agreed that, where it is deemed necessary to make adjustments to the 2013/14 Decent Homes Programme and/or the reserve schemes (due to confirmation of the Agreed Maximum Prices for these works, the availability of funding and/or stock investment priorities), such decisions are delegated to the Director of Adult and Housing Services after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and the Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction.
- v. That it be noted that further reports would be produced early in 2013, recommending that investment priorities for the 2014/15 (Year 7) Decent Homes Programme and the appointment of Quantity Surveying and Multi Disciplinary Design consultants to support the delivery of the housing capital programme from 2013/14 onwards.

Alternative Options Considered

The Decent Homes Programme 2013/14 and 2014/15 will ensure that at least another 2,459 Council homes are brought up to the Decent Homes Standard by the end of March 2015. Planned investment is being arranged in priority order.

Although it is possible to alter the investment priorities between years, the investment proposed for 2013/14 is deemed to represent the most effective way of making homes decent and meeting current and future investment needs.

Reasons for Decision

A decision is required to allow Haringey Council and Homes for Haringey to improve specific properties in 2013/14 following the confirmation of the Backlog Decent Homes funding allocation by Greater London Authority (GLA) in September 2012. Approval of this decision by Cabinet will ensure that the allocated funding is fully spent within 2013/14 to meet the GLA's requirement.

CAB312. ACADEMY CONVERSIONS

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children, which detailed the schools wishing to convert academy status. The report sought approval to delegate authority to the Director of

	Children's Services to facilitate this process.	
	In response to a query it was confirmed that land owned by the Council would be transferred to schools converting to Academy status as part of the conversion process. It was also confirmed that Academy schools would have their own admissions criteria in place; however, the admissions process would continue to be administered by the Local Authority.	
	RESOLVED:	
	i. That the decision of the educational establishments to convert to Academy status be noted.	
	ii. That in order to facilitate the statutory process and conversion of schools to Academy status it be approved that for each of the establishments the Local Authority, as appropriate, enter into:	
	 a. A Commercial Transfer Agreement b. A lease for 125 years where the Local Authority is the freeholder 	
	 iii. That authority be delegated to the Director of Children's Services to agree the terms of the documents set out in paragraphs ii (a) and ii (b) above, to be entered into in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children. 	
	Alternative Options Considered None – this is a statutory process following the exercise of the educational establishments' discretion to choose to convert to Academy status under the Academies Act 2010.	
	Reasons for Decision This is a statutory process following the exercise of the educational establishments to choose to convert to academy status under the Academies Act 2010.	
CAB313.	ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE	
	Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Economic Development and Social Inclusion, which outlined how the responsibilities under the Localism Act 2011 and Regulations could be implemented. The report also sought delegation of powers to officers to enable the procedures to be undertaken.	
	RESOLVED:	
	i. That the approach to managing the Community Right to Bid pursuant to Regulations under the Localism Act 2011 be noted.	

ii. That authorisation to officers to undertake the functions specified

			in Appendix A of the report be approved.	
		iii.	That approval be given to the criteria for assessing nominations, as set out in Appendix B, of the report.	
		There	native Options Considered e are no alternative options. This legislation is now in force and Authorities are required to facilitate the process.	
		In line Comr	ons for Decision e with the Localism Act 2011 and the supporting Assets of munity Value 2012, Local Authorities are required to facilitate the ts of Community Value procedures.	
C	CAB314.		LIC HEALTH TRANSITION - PEOPLE, CONTRACTS AND	
		Healt	net considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for h and Adult Services, which provided an overview of arrangements e transfer of the Public Health function to the Local Authority in April	
		RESC	OLVED:	
		That I	NHS contracts be transferred to the Local Authority as follows:	
		i.	Contracts that expire prior to April 2013, that are not affected by the substance misuse re-tender, as listed in Appendix 2a, will be extended by the NHS to March 2014 to ensure continuity of service. These contracts will transfer under statutory transfer scheme arrangements to the Council on 1 April 2013.	
		ii.	Contracts that expire prior to 1 April 2013, that are affected by the substance misuse re-tender, as listed in Appendix 2b of the report, will be extended by the NHS to December 2013 to ensure continuity of service and alignment with the re-tender process. These contracts will also transfer under statutory transfer scheme arrangements to the Council on 1 April 2013.	
		iii.	In order to facilitate the redesign and re-tendering of substance misuse contracts during 2012/13, which will comprise of contracts currently within the Council and some contracts that will transfer to the Council on 1 April 2013, approval is sought for the following:	
			A third waiver of the 'Eban' contract for a nine month period from April 2013 to December 2013 under Contract Standing Orders (CSO) 10.01.5 in Appendix 2f; A nine month extension of contracts listed in Appendix 2g from April 2013 to December 2013 under CSO 19.02.2 of the Council's CSO.	
		iv.	To note that NHS contracts moving to the Council, which expire	

	after April 2013, will transfer under statutory transfer scheme arrangements on 1 April 2013. These contracts are also contained in Appendix 2a.	
	v. To noted that there are financial implications for some sexual health services provided to Haringey residents outside the Borough. There is a statutory requirement to provide genitor-urinary medicine (GUM) services through national arrangements, whereby anyone can access GUM services in any part of England and Wales. Boroughs are then invoiced monthly by the provider organisation. Haringey will have limited control over the costs incurred under this national open access arrangement.	
	Alternative Options Considered The transfer of the Public Health function to the Council is required by the Health and Social Care Act 2012 – as a legal requirement, there are no other options to consider.	
	Following the transfer of functions and their related contracts, as outlined in the report, there will be opportunities to shape future commissioned services.	
	Reasons for Decision This information is set out in sections 2 and 3 of the report.	
CAB315.	HARINGEY PROPERTY REVIEW - COUNCIL COMMUNITY BUILDINGS Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Finance and Carbon Reduction, which sought approval of new key principles to be applied to the Community Buildings policy and the strategic framework in order to help achieve improvements in the suitability, condition and sustainability of buildings.	
	RESOLVED:	
	i. That the following key principles being applied to the Community Building's policy and strategic framework, to achieve improvements in the suitability, condition and sustainability of building and to widen access for Haringey's diverse communities by aligning these to community needs and Council priorities, be approved:	
	 Community building tenures based on an assessment of community use benefit and tenant sustainability, with formal periodic reviews to be carried out at least every two years. 	
	b. Tenant sustainability and community use benefits assessed against Council priorities and criteria aligned with the Voluntary Sector Strategy and a process linked to the Investment Fund criteria.	
•	1 I	

- Lease conditions to include enforceable requirements for widening community access and promoting shared use of facilities.
- ii. That the principle that Council community buildings that are surplus to community use and present opportunities for leveraging wider regeneration and community benefits should be prioritised for redevelopment, alternative use or wider land assembly, be approved.
- iii. That the following reforms of circular grant funding for rent, to achieve increased community benefits from the use of available funding and to achieve fairness and transparency a key principle in the Voluntary Sector Strategy, be approved:
 - a. The allocation of rent subsidy to be assessed against Council priorities and the Voluntary Sector Strategy with the process aligned to the Investment Fund criteria.
 - b. That all circular grant funding for rent be subject to formal periodic reviews every two years.
- iv. That the methodology (point 7) and programme (point 12) for the in depth review of community buildings and tenancies in consultation with the tenants and for Property Services to bring forward any recommendations for change to Cabinet during Spring 2013 be approved.

Alternative Options Considered

The review has considered options with greater emphasis on regeneration outcomes, income maximisation, revenue savings and releasing capital by adopting principles based solely on best alternative use of assets. However, these options have not been developed further as the Council recognises the importance of suitable community spaces where people can meet, socialise, plan and deliver self help and other services as well as providing opportunities for community groups to lease or share suitable community buildings, which they can regard as home or a base. Consequently and in line with the Council's Voluntary Sector Strategy, in particular outcome 5, the principles being recommended are designed to develop a supply of suitable community buildings, which meet the Council's priorities, represent good use of resources and are managed for sustainability.

Reasons for Decision

In line with the recently adopted Voluntary Sector Strategy 2011-2016 (including outcome 5) there is a requirement to refocus the Council's policy, strategy and practice in relation to community buildings and to set out recommendations and actions to make better use of the portfolio through supporting wider regeneration, improving the quality of buildings and making them more widely accessible by Haringey's diverse Voluntary and Community Sector.

CAB316. PENSIONS AND AUTO ENROLMENT

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Leader of the Council, which set out the current legislation and how it applied to the Council and the options to defer auto-enrolment.

RESOLVED:

- i. That approval be given to the delay of the auto-enrolment for existing job holders, until October 2017.
- ii. That the postponement of auto-enrolment for all newly appointed eligible job holders with a short term contract of less than three months for a period of three months or until the expiration of the contract if sooner, be approved.
- iii. That it be noted that auto-enrolment would apply to all other newly appointed eligible job holders with effect from 1 March 2013.

Alternative Options Considered

Consideration was initially given to postponing the date on which autoenrolment obligations would otherwise apply from 1 March 2013 to 1 June 2013 to bed-in a SAP Payroll upgrade for auto-enrolment.

The early application of auto-enrolment across the whole workforce was initially considered on the basis that operationally it would be less administratively complex and simpler for employees to understand. It also underlined the Council's commitment to the benefits of membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme and the benefits which both the Council as an employer and the employees enjoy from participation in the scheme. However, the budgetary implications outweighed these considerations.

Reasons for Decision

The decision to delay auto-enrolment to 1 October 2017 will alleviate an estimated increase in employer contributions amounting to £3m in 2013/14 and each subsequent year thereafter until 2017/18.

Postponing the auto-enrolment of casual employees will remove the requirement for an alternative scheme to be provided for them.

CAB317. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR THE PROVISION OF PARENT PARTNERSHIP SERVICE

Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children, which sought approval to award a contract to the successful tenderer (listed in the exempt part of the report) in accordance with Contract Standing Orders.

RESOLVED:

That the award of contact to the successful tenderer (set out in the

	exempt part of the report) in accordance with Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.7.1(d) be agreed.				
	Alternative Option Considered In-House Provision: consultation with parents/carers has consistently indicated that their preference is that the Parent Partnership Service should be provided independently of the Council. Also having an arms length has been recognised as national good practice.				
	Reasons for Decision The proposed service will meet the Council's statutory duty to ensure that parents and carers are well informed and able to understand and manage the special education needs process.				
	The procurement process has been carried out in line with the Procurement Code of Practice.				
CAB318.	AWARD OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT FOR PRINT AND				
	ASSOCIATED SERVICES Cabinet considered a report, introduced by the Leader of the Council, which sought approval to award a framework agreement for Print and Associated Services.				
	RESOLVED:				
	i. That approval be given to award the framework agreement for Print and Associated Services to the contractors identified in the exempt part of the report for a period of four years from 1 February 2013 to 31 January 2017, as allowed under Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.07 as the most economically advantageous tender.				
	ii. That the contract should be monitored by the Council's Communications and Marketing Team via key performance indicators in relation to jobs delivered on time, proportion of jobs declined as well as speed/response to complaints.				
	iii. That it be noted that the service would continue to ensure value for money as contractors can ensure their prices remain competitive as they are able to update their prices to take advantage of prices changes in materials. In addition all jobs will be subject to competition via a web-based management system, so best prices per job are obtained on an ongoing basis.				
	Alternative options considered No other options were available as this is a Part A or 'priority service' and as such is subject to the full requirements of European Union Procurement Regulations. Current suppliers therefore could not continue without a tender process taking place.				
	Reasons for Decision				

	To award a framework agreement for print and associated services.				
045040					
CAB319.	MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES				
	RESOLVED:				
	That the minutes of the meetings set out below be noted:				
	 Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee – 8 October 2012 Cabinet Member Signing – 27 November 2012 Cabinet Member Signing – 4 December 2012 				
CAB320.	SIGNIFICANT AND DELEGATED SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS				
	RESOLVED:				
	That the report be noted.				
CAB321.	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS				
	There were not new items of Urgent Business.				
CAB322.	EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC				
	RESOLVED:				
	That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the items below contain exempt information, as defined under paragraph 3, Part 1, schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.				
CAB323.					
	PARTNERSHIP SERVICE Exempt information pertaining to Item 24 was considered.				
CAB324.	AWARD OF FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT FOR PRINT AND ASSOCIATED SERVICES				
	Exempt information pertaining to Item 25 was considered.				
CAB325.	EXEMPT MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES				
	RESOLVED:				
	That the exempt minutes of the meeting set out below be noted:				
	 Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee – 8 October 2012 Cabinet Member Signing – 27 November 2012 				
CAB326.	NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS				
	There were no new exempt items of Urgent Business.				

The meeting closed at 7 50pm	
The meeting closed at 7.50pm.	
5	

COUNCILLOR CLAIRE KOBER

.....

Chair